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HISTORIC AMERICAN BUILDINGS SURVEY 

.     LANGHOLFF HOUSE AND BARM 

Location: 

Present Owner: 

Present Occupant 

Present Use: 

Brief Statement 
of Significance: 

East side of County Trunk EM, 1/2 mile south of 
State Route 109, 2 rai3.es east of Y/atertown, Water- 
town Vicinity, Emmet Township, Dodge County, Wis- 
consin . 

Lester H. Langholff, Rt. 2}  Y/atertom, Wisconsin. 

Lester H. Langholff 

Pig barn and farm workshop; second floor of the 
house portion not in use. 

This building is an especially interesting example 
of a type of half-timber construction built by 
early German settlers in Wisconsin and known in 
Germany as Facliwerkbsu, It is the only building 
of this type in the area "where the house and barn 
were designed and constructed as a single unit. 
In addition, the construction is of interest In 
that a great number of the panels filling-in between 
the half-timber members ore formed of vertical oak 
staves daubed with clay and straw and parged with 
plaster.  It is assumed that this was probably the 
earlier construction for this type of building and 
that the more usual brick Hogging was a later re- 
placement.  It is also thought that the plnn as 
well as the steeper roof pitch and silhouette may 
indicate a different European provenance. 

BABT I. HISTORICAL INFORMATION 

Physical History 

1. Original and subsequent owners;  Friedrich idlese, 1845 
until 1851; Gottlieb V/inde, until 1866; John Gotter Scholz, 
until 1879; Heinrich Schola, until 1929; Arthur Scholz, 
until 1950; Oscar Lsngholff, until 1959; Lester H. Lang- 
holff. 

2. Date of erection: This is uncertain but it is believed to 
be around 18^8 or  about 3 years after Friederich KLiese 
acquired the property from the United States, 
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3. Builder: No corpenter--jolner (s name is known, out it is 
thought that the building v/as buil't by or for Priederich 
ICLiese who  came from the Prussian .'Province of Silesia, 

/f..     Notes on alterations and additions:    A small stone wing 
projects from the south side of the building and this,   in 
turn,   shows signs of an altered roof construction, but  it 
is not Known when this wins was  added. 

a. Property Abstract of Lester H.  Langholff in his pos- 
session. 

b. Richard W. K.  Perrin,  "'Fachwerlcbau'  Houses in.Wiscon- 
sin/1  Journal of the Society of Architectural Histori- 
_ans, volf XVIlf, no. 1 (March, 1959), pp. 29-33. 

c. Richard '.7. K. Perrin, Historic Wisconsin Architecture 
(Milwaukee, Wisconsin: 'The Wisconsin Chapter of the 
American Institute of Architects, I960), p. 14. 

d. Richard W. E. Perrin, "Historic \7isconsin Buildings, 
A Survey of Pioneer Architecture, 1835-1870," Lore, 
vol. X, no. 3 (Milwaukee: Friends of the Museum of the 
Milwaukee Public I-.-Iuseum, Summer, i960), 

PART II. ARCHITECTURAL INFORMATION 

A. General Statement 

1. Architectural character:    This is a large and imposing ex- 
ample of regional Fsch^er^au with unusual features in plan 
and elevation. 

2. Condition of fabric:    Neglected and poorly maintained. 
The owner may alter the east end in order to get  a tractor 
into his shop. 

B. Technical Description of Exterior 

1.    Overall dimensions:     30 feet x 80 feet,  2-1/2 stories. 

2."    Foundations;    Native fieldstone. 

3-    Wall construction:    9" x 9" hewn oak frame mortised, tenoned, 
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and. pegged, resting on a 9" wood sill. Horizontal and 
vertical members form panels filled with vertical staves 
daubed with clay and straw and parged with plaster; the 
panels of the east elevation, and the lower panels on 
north end south elevations, are replaced with kiln dried 
bricks. On parts ox the south and north elevations, the 
nogging Is missing altogether and vertical hoarding is 
nailed over the frame, The end panels have diagonal braces 
full height. The small wing has lower walls of fieldstone. 

4. Chimneys; Small brick chimney out of the schwartse Kuche 
is offset in attic space to ride on ridge, 

5. Openings 

a. General framing: All openings in exterior walls except 
in end panels are framed with short horizontal members 
between continuous verticals. 

h. Doorways snd doors:  Except for a four-panel door on 
north elevation which is obviously a replacement, all 
existing doors are board and batten. 

c. Windows: Ml windows are double hung, 12-81' x 10" lights, 
except where these have been replaced with various 
makeshift sash, 

6. Roof 

a. Shape, covering: Gabled roof, modern asphalt shingle 
covering. 

b. Framing: Approximately 7" x 7" rafters of squared logs, 
averaging 4' - 6" o,c„, with 6" tie-beams (tie-beams 
have been removed In the barn loft.) Horizontal sheath- 
ing laid over the rafters, 

c. Eaves: Rafter ends cut on a 4? degree angle and boxed, 

C. Technical Description of Interiors 

1. Floor plans:  Floor plan is completely divided with no com- 
munication between the house and barn elements. Barn 
element: consists of a single ground floor with granary 
above, plus a small wing with single room and. loft; an 
11T-6" addition has been built on the west end as a wagon 
house.  House element: consists of 2 stories plus attic; 
the lower story has a small entrance hall with stair; a 
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a masonry-vaulted roois with flue used as smoke house, 
etc,   and called  In German,   scjMy^zeJCuche,  and two equal 
sized rooms  bo the east.    The second  story lias an en- 
trance hall and two rooms as below.    The attic is open 
and unfinished.     The house portion only has  a full base- 
ment . 

2. Stairways:     Single-run,  enclosed  stairway from first 
floor to attic,     Stair to basement, 

3. Flooring:     Flooring is wood,   laid on wood  joists,   except 
in the entrance hall which is brick and in the schwarae 
Kuche which was probably formerly brick but  is now missing. 
First floor construction which can be observed in the 
basement,   consists of 1" split wood boards,   5" clay and 
straw filler, over which is laid the  finish floor.     Second 
floor and attic  floor construction cannot be observed. 

4. Wall and ceiling finish:    Plaster throughout first and 
second  floor sohg^zeJCuche.    Basement and attic unfinished 
with exposed joists and rafters. 

D 

5, Doorways and doors:     Interior doors are six-panel except 
for a board and batten door to the stair enclosure. 

6, Trim:     Simple 4!'?  unmolded. 

7, Hardware:     The main door from the entrance hall to the 
house has  an interesting cast bronze latch and latch 
handle.    Other hardware are crude modern replacements. 

S,     Lighting:     Now wired  for electricity, 

9-    Heating:     Stoves,  apparently operating through a single 
flue.     No  fireplace. 

General setting and orientation:    The building faces north 
with the main axis east and west.     It Is now part of a typical 
Wisconsin farm group and serves as a farm outbuilding- 

# 

Prepared by Ren-ry  C, Kdwards. 
Architect, National ?arK Service, 
August 1960 


